
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time - Tuesday, 3 March 2015 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, S M Booth, 
C J T H Brewis, R Clark, R Grocock, M Howard, J L King, 
R Perkins, R M Rudkin, M D Seymour, E J Sneath, A C Tennant, 
D J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) and S Wilkinson

Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may 
be appointed only from members who are not on the Cabinet.  
Substitutions apply for individual meetings only. 

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   23 February 2015



A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence

2. Declarations of Interest. - (Members are no longer required to declare 
personal or prejudicial interests but are to declare any new Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests that are not currently included in their Register of 
Interests

Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct)   

3. Joint Task Group updates - To receive updates on the following:

a)  Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group - (Tracking of 
recommendations form enclosed)

(Pages 
1 - 4)

b)  Leisure Task Group - Leisure Update Report – To provide an 
update on the work undertaken regarding the future provision of 
Leisure Services (report of the Assistant Director Community 
enclosed)

(Pages 
5 - 8)

4. Portfolio Holder update - The Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, 
Performance and Business Development will be in attendance to 
provide an update on his Portfolio in general.  Particular consideration to 
be given to communications issues

5. Crime and Disorder update - The Portfolio Holder for Localism, 
Economic Development and Big Society will be in attendance to provide 
an update report on community safety and how it is being delivered 
through the various tiers of Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs 
CSP and newly formed Lincolnshire CSP).  (A copy of the minutes of the 
Panel meeting of 25 November 2014, where the last update was 
received, is enclosed)

(Pages 
9 - 10)

6. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel held on 27 January 2015 (copy 
enclosed).

 The Panel will receive a verbal update from the Assistant Director 
Community relating to the bandstand and aviary at Ayscoughfee 
Gardens, details of progress, and how the project would move 
forward within the anticipated timeframe.  This issue was discussed 
under minute number 44 of the last meeting, held on 27 January 
2015

(Pages 
11 - 20)

7. Questions asked under Council Procedure Rule 10.3



8. Items referred from the Policy Development Panel

9. Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan, published 9 
February 2015 (copy enclosed)

(Pages 
21 - 24)

10. Resourcing within the Planning Service - To update the Performance 
Monitoring Panel on resourcing within the Planning Service (report of 
the Executive Director Place (S151) enclosed)

(Pages 
25 - 32)

11. Performance Overview Report - Q3 2014/15 - To provide an update on 
delivery against the 2011-15 Corporate Plan for the period 1 October 
2014 to 31 December 2014 (report of the Executive Director, 
Commissioning and Governance enclosed)

(Pages 
33 - 50)

12. Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Democratic Services and Legal Manager enclosed)

(Pages 
51 - 62)

13. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL/POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - RECOMMENDATION TRACKING

Title of Report: Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group Final Report

Date of Panel: Not applicable

Recommendations made to: Council

Date: 21 January 2015

Relevant Portfolio: Portfolio Holder for Community Assets, Member Services and Special Projects

Lead Officer: Legal Services Co-ordinator

Recommendations Cabinet Response Officer(s) 
responsible 
for action

Progress 
report back 
to Panel

The Task Group made the following recommendations:

a) That the Council (i) advised the Charity 
Commission that the Task Group has considered 
the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is 
satisfied that the Council is compliant; (ii) provides 
a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) 
invites the Performance Monitoring Panel to appoint 
a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council 
remains compliant with Charity Commission 
Guidance.

The Council received the final report of the Halley 
Stewart Task Group.  In introducing the report, the 
Chairman of the Task Group thanked the Legal 
Services Co-ordinator and Member Services Officer 
for their assistance.

Members noted that many different uses had been 
suggested for the field but that the deeds signed in the 
1950s were binding and couldn’t be changed.  The 
Council was acting appropriately and was compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance.

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 3.a)



b) That the site remains secured when not in use 
under a formal booking and that bookings be 
granted only where the proposed use has some 
connection with sport.

c) That the Council advertises the availability of the 
site more widely, and begins by (i) erecting 
appropriate signage at the site entrance in a similar 
format to the sign at Spalding Cemetery; and (ii) 
organising an open day at which local sports clubs 
are invited to have a stall – possibly linked to the 
next People’s Parade.

d) That management and promotion/branding of the 
Sir Halley Stewart Field be improved, and that 
users/interested parties be consulted on any 
proposed changes to promotion/branding.

e) That a new charging mechanism be introduced in 
order to ensure that hirers who use services such 
as gas, electricity (including the floodlights), water 
and sewage are required to meet the full cost of 
their use of the playing field and that officers 
consider the best mechanism for achieving this.

f) That, as part of its Building Maintenance 
Programme and/or Capital Renewal Programme, 
the Council considers repairing/improving the 
Council-owned buildings/structures at the site 
(including the entrance gates) together with the 
heating and lighting systems in the changing 

Members discussed paragraph 7(g) of the report 
which referred to the restoration of the gates and 
included a figure of £17,000.  The Legal Services Co-
ordinator informed the Council that this figure had 
been included in the draft budget in relation to the 
playing field but he reassured the Council that this 
was not the cost of restoring the gates.

The Task Group were thanked for their work in 
examining the issue and producing the report.

DECISION: 

That the recommendations (a to o) as set out in 
paragraph 7.2 of the Task Group’s Final Report are 
approved.

P
age 2



rooms.  Such repairs/improvements to ensure that 
minimum standards are maintained as may be 
required by law (such as health and safety, 
disability discrimination, etc).

g) That officers introduce a reporting mechanism to 
ensure that any health and safety issues that are 
identified are reported to the Portfolio Holder, and 
that costs and charges are monitored regularly 
through the Spalding Town Forum.

h) That officers produce a user-friendly guide to 
booking the playing field and that officers review the 
booking form to ensure that it is easy to follow.  The 
Guide to be circulated to all local schools and 
sporting clubs.

i) That a policy on bookings be drafted by the Leisure 
and Tourism Facilities Manager.

j) That officers investigate the possibility of the 
booking form and policy being made available 
through Customer Services and, assuming that this 
is feasible, staff be trained to assist customers who 
wish to make such bookings.

k) That all applications for bookings be assessed in 
accordance with the new policy and that in any 
case where the officer with delegated authority 
wishes to make a decision which falls outside of the 
policy, the officer be required to consult with the 
relevant Portfolio Holder or Junior Portfolio Holder.

P
age 3



l) That, where any hirer is required to insure against 
any particular risks, the hirer be required to provide 
copies of such insurance certificates on request 
along with such other certificates that the Council 
may require (such as a fire certificate).

m) That SUFC be approached with a view to making it 
clear that (i) any and all works to meet league 
requirements must be undertaken at their own cost 
and shall only take place with SHDC’s consent; and 
(ii) existing and future works must not interfere with 
any future use by other hirers (in due course this 
may require the barriers, for example, to be made 
removable).

n) Given that there are clearly insufficient playing 
areas to accommodate the number of youngsters 
now keen to join junior football teams and leagues, 
officers investigate the possibility of establishing 
two junior pitches alongside the main pitch, such 
investigations to include an examination of the likely 
costs (such as the cost of draining and lighting).

o) That any works identified are incorporated into a 
work programme and allocated to an identified 
officer.

P
age 4



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Assistant Director Community

To: Performance Monitoring Panel - 3 March 2015

(Author: Riana Rudland – Community Development and Health Manager)

Subject: Leisure update report

Purpose: To provide an update on the work undertaken regarding the future provision 
of Leisure Services

Recommendation: 

1) That members note the contents of the report.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel set up a Members Task 
Group in January 2014 to provide recommendations for both the short and long term 
provision of leisure services within the district. Following a report of the Task Group to 
Cabinet on 7 October 2014 it was resolved: 

a) That at present the interim report of the Leisure Task Group be noted for the work 
undertaken to date, but the recommendations not be accepted; and

b) That the Corporate Management Team look at the interim report and the issues raised 
within the discussion of it, that this be fed into the work of the Task Group, and that a 
further report be presented to the Cabinet in due course.

1.2 As a result of the Cabinet meeting a report was presented to the Corporate Management 
Team (CMT) identifying strategic issues relating to future provision of leisure services. The 
view of the Corporate Management Team was that the development of a full Business 
Case should form part of a wider transformation programme that is currently being 
developed for the Council but that an analysis of new and existing data should be 
completed immediately.

1.3 Following the Cabinet meeting local media expressed an interest in surveying the public to 
gauge their views on leisure provision. This was undertaken in November 2014 and this 
report seeks to inform members of the outcome of that work. In addition, members were 
keen to understand how previous research conducted in the district could be utilised. This 
information has been used as a comparison for the more recent data.

1.4 Responses - The survey run in the local media comprised of questions relating to usage, 
membership, standards, facility mix, desired facilities, and satisfaction. There were 127 
responses received of which 111 of those who responded were current members of the 
facilities. Of the 127 responses received 63% indicated they were Castle Sports Complex 
users, 21% pool users, 14% used both facilities and 2% didn’t state either way. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.b)



1.5 Satisfaction – Respondents were asked to score 5 areas in terms of their level of 
satisfaction with each. Each area was scored from 1-5 with 5 being the highest level of 
satisfaction. The results for each area were:

 Customer Service with a score of 4.29, 
 Value for money with an average score of 4.15, 
 Programming / Activities on offer scored an average of 3.91 
 The facilities / equipment on offer scored 3.64 
 Cleanliness at the sites scored an average of 3.31. 

Overall, of the 127 respondents, 107 stated that they would recommend the facilities to 
others. Of those who stated they would not recommend the facility to others, 79% would not 
recommend the pool.

1.6 Usage – When asked which facilities respondents used, the largest proportion stated they 
used the Fitness suite (34%), Group classes / Aerobics (17%), café (14%), and Personal 
training (13%).

1.7 Desired changes – The survey gave respondents the opportunity to identify ‘desired 
changes’. The results of this are detailed below:

 Additional Parking – 50% of respondents indicated this as a desired change
 Improved access – 16% of respondents indicated this as a desired change
 Facilities on one site – 38% of respondents indicated this as a desired change
 Different opening times – 9% of respondents indicated this as a desired change
 Wider range of facilities on offer – 36% of respondents indicated this as a desired 

change
 Improved condition of facilities – 59% of respondents indicated this as a desired 

change
 Change in membership / pricing – 19% of respondents indicated this as a desired 

change

1.8 Additional Comments – Respondents were given the opportunity to make additional 
comments in addition to the points covered in the survey. These comments fell in to 36 
categories which included improved facilities, free wi-fi, cleanliness, compliments relating to 
staff, and car parking as well as specific comments relating to potential future options, site 
locations and specific sports club matters. 

139 of these additional comments were received, and of these most comments fell over two 
categories – ‘New build / on one site’ and ‘Improve Condition’ with a total of 35% of the 
comments made relating to these areas. Other frequent comments related to facilities being 
outdated and the cleanliness of the facilities.

1.9 Comparing this data to previous data collected by the authority in August 2007 is 
problematic for a number of reasons. Firstly the sample size in the recent survey is not 
great enough to produce statistically significant values and therefore may not represent an 
accurate picture. Furthermore, the data was collected from specific groups of people, i.e. 
those who receive and read the local paper and users of the facilities who were also 
encouraged to respond. 

1.10 It should also be noted that the data previously collected by the authority is almost 8 years 
old and therefore may also be unreliable. However the sample size used in 2007 was 728 
and this research, while dated, does provide a wider opinion of the community as the 

Page 6



methodology used ensured a mix of feedback from a broader cross section of the 
population, different age groups, users and non-users.

1.11 The 2007 data suggests that at that time only 23% of the total sample felt it was important 
to provide a new leisure centre in South Holland, the recent data suggests this figure may 
now be higher. In 2007 64% of people identified that the most important feature of a facility 
would be a swimming pool and 17% a sports hall. Only 6% felt a gym was a priority. 35% of 
the sample back in 2007 felt improvements to the existing facilities were important.

1.12 Within the 2007 sample, 120 were users of the facilities (with more than half of these being 
users of the pool). Of this group 2/3rds stated they would use the centre more often if it 
were improved and over half drove to the centre.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note the contents of the report

2.2 Do nothing

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 This report is for information only. This analysis will form part of the development of a 
Business Case as part of the Council’s Transformation Programme currently under 
development.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The data analysis (while not statistically significant) does provide useful insight into 
customer and resident opinion regarding future provision of Leisure Services.

4.2 The methodology used in original data collection provides a good basis on which to base 
further research.

4.3 Whilst recent data is limited, it provides a good starting point for the development of a full 
Business Case.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications at this time however the 
management contract with the existing provider is due to end in June 2018.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 Links to new Corporate Plan priority ‘To have pride in South Holland by supporting the 
district and residents to develop and thrive’, and the specific Critical Activity ‘Lead, enable 

Page 7



and co-ordinate the provision of a range of local community and leisure facilities that 
improve education health and wellbeing’.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Health & Wellbeing

5.7.1 Links to new Corporate Plan priority ‘To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more 
independent communities while protecting the most vulnerable’ and the Critical Activities 
‘Work with partners to remain active, participative, and live independently within the 
community’ and ‘Lead and support the South Holland Health and Wellbeing Partnership to 
address key local health, care and wellbeing issues’.

5.8 Financial 

5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications at this stage.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 The recent data sample is not large enough to provide statistically significant sample on 
which to base assumptions, however it is a useful starting point for further development.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications other than those covered 
in the main body of the report.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 CMT – Corporate Management Team

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Riana Rudland, Community Development and Health Manager
Telephone Number: 01362 656300
Email: riana.rudland@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 
Exempt Decision: No
This report refers to a Discretionary Service 
Appendices attached to this report: None

Page 8



Performance Monitoring Panel – 25 November 2014

The Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development and Big Society was in 
attendance to provide an update report on community safety and how it was being 
delivered through the various tiers of Groups and Panels (including the East 
Lincolnshire CSP and Lincolnshire CSP)

Some information had been reported in the previous agenda item, and the Portfolio 
Holder advised of the following additional issues:

 A Community Safety Survey had been undertaken over the last 6 months 
involving 500 residents.

 Diversionary activities for young people were taking place around the district.  
Young people were being encouraged to attend, and attendance levels had been 
good.

 Over the last 6 months, 32 Anti Social Behaviour cases had been opened.  There 
had been 152 Level 1 warnings, and 20 Level 2 and 3 acceptable behaviour 
contracts.  Engagement was taking place to establish their concerns.

The following questions were raised:

 How could young people’s interest in diversionary activities be maintained?
o Officers were liaising with Youth Support Teams to progress this.

 The issue of dog fouling was highlighted as an increasing problem.  There were 
many responsible dog owners however, there was also a growing number of 
irresponsible and sometimes aggressive owners.  What could be done and what 
data was there to show action currently taken place against them? This 
information should be forwarded to Parish Councils.

o The Community Development Team Leader advised that she did not 
have the figures to hand but these could be found out and passed to 
members and Parish Councils.  Tools and powers available under the 
new Open Space Powers had been reduced from 19 to 16, which could 
make taking action easier than the previous system of using bylaws.  
The Community Development Team Leader advised that she would 
forward data and information on the new Open Space Powers to Parish 
Councils.

 What were Inspector Tyner’s views regarding tax disks no longer having to be 
displayed in vehicles?

o Inspector Tyner commented that technology was now widely used to 
automatically scan vehicle number plates in many different locations.  
This told the DVLA immediately if a car was being used illegally, and 
the DVLA could therefore prosecute with no human intervention taking 
place.

 In light of the fact that tax discs no longer had to be displayed in vehicles, was 
there an issue with foreign registered vehicles not being taxed?  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5.



o Inspector Tyner responded that these cars could be driven without tax for 
up to three months after they arrived in the country but it was difficult to 
monitor these dates, and also the three month period would start again if 
they left the country and came back.  Efforts were being made to set up a 
link with the Immigration Database to make it easier to check this 
information.  If drivers were suspected of driving without insurance, they 
could be stopped and required to produce a valid insurance document for 
the UK.  Last year, 95% of those stopped had been able to provide 
suitable documentation.

 Had any Special Constables been recruited?
o Inspector Tyner advised that there were 17 based in Spalding which 

was an increase.  In addition to more Special Constables being 
recruited, it was also essential that these were of a good calibre. 

AGREED:

a) That the update provided by the Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic 
Development and Big Society be noted;

b) That the Community Development Team Leader send data on action taken 
against dog owners who did not clean up after their dogs fouled in public areas, 
and information on the new Open Space Powers, to members of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Parish Councils; and

c) That the Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development and Big Society 
provide the Performance Monitoring Panel with a further update at its meeting on 
7 April 2015.

(The Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development and Big Society, the 
Community Development and Health Manager, the Community Development Team 
Leader and Inspector J Tyner all left the meeting at 7.15pm, following discussion of 
the above item.)

Page 10



- 38 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in Meeting 
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 27 January 2015 at 
6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
D J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
R Clark

R Grocock
M Howard

R Perkins
R M Rudkin

 

In Attendance:  The Executive Director (Place), the Interim IT Manager, the ICT 
Manager, the CSU and Property General Manager, the Principal Democratic Services 
Officer and the Portfolio Holder for Community Assets, Member Services and Special 
Projects.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors S M Booth, 
J L King, M D Seymour, E J Sneath and S Wilkinson 

Action By
41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST. 

There were none. 

42. HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

With the agreement of the Chairman, it was decided to move this 
item, followed by the ICT Summary Update, up the agenda, to be 
considered prior to the Portfolio Holder update.

Consideration was given to the report of the CSU and Property 
General Manager, which updated the Panel on progress of the 
purchase of a new asset management system.  

The new system would enable the property team to keep suitable 
records of completed and planned work undertaken on the 
housing stock.  It would provide the necessary information to 
assist with future financial planning, as well as removing 
duplication of data for various maintenance and legislative 
purposes (including asbestos, servicing of gas appliances and 
Energy Performance Certificates). The new system would replace 
a number of existing systems to ensure information was not 
duplicated, but could be integrated with other systems, including 
the CSU and Housing Management Team’s systems.

A procurement exercise had been conducted by the Housing 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6.



- 39 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

Property Services team, and was nearing completion.  The CSU 
and Property General Manager advised that a supplier had now 
been selected, and that the contract would be awarded shortly.  
Implementation of the new system would take a number of 
months, but should be fully completed by late summer/early 
autumn of 2015.

Members considered the report and the following questions were 
asked:

 Would improvements be seen with the introduction of the new 
system?

o Yes, it would bring all aspects of the service into one 
area.  Compliance would be achieved, it would 
make the Asset Management Plan more 
streamlined, would provide better forecasting and 
modelling and make the unit more efficient.

 Who would have access to use the system?
o It would not be restricted by licenses, so anybody 

could use it.  Customer Services would be able to 
access the system.

 Would the system ultimately provide a greater depth to 
knowledge to operatives?   

o Training had to be undertaken.  Implementation 
would take six to nine months, data would be 
provided to the suppliers for input, it would be 
ensured that the data input was correct, and roll out 
would then follow.

 How would improvement in performance, as a result of the 
new system, be measured?

o The Executive Director (Place) responded that some 
performance indicators were needed to show the 
measurable differences the system made e.g. with 
regard to efficiency and savings.  The CSU and 
Property General Manager would receive support in 
this from the management team.  

 Would the new system have any effect on the time taken to 
turn around void properties? 

o It was hoped that the system would enable more 
flexibility around stock condition, and work could be 
planned on a more realistic basis.  

 Had sickness figures improved?
o In the past, there had been concerns regarding 

Page 12



- 40 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

sickness levels however, real progress was being 
made in significantly reducing the average number 
of days lost to sickness.  Sickness levels within the 
department were now comparable to other sections 
within the Authority.

Members stated that they were extremely happy to hear that 
sickness levels had improved to such an extent. 

It was agreed that the necessity for future reports from the CSU 
and Property General Manager be considered at a meeting after 
the forthcoming District Council  elections.

ACTION:

a) That the report of the CSU and Property General Manager be 
noted; and

b) That the necessity for future reports on progress of the 
restructure of the CSU (from recommendations of the 
reformed CSU Task Group) be considered at a meeting after 
the forthcoming District Council elections. 

(The CSU and Property General Manager left the meeting at 
6.55pm, following discussion of the above item). 

CM 

43. ICT SUMMARY UPDATE 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
(Commissioning and Governance) which provided members with 
an update on ICT.  

Detailed as an appendix to the report was a list of current  ICT 
(Information and Communications Technology) issues.  The 
Panel was advised that the Members’ IT refresh was currently on 
track.  iPads had been recommended as the preferred technology 
by the IT Working Group.  Phones and printers had not been 
requested.  Budget figures to release funds  were being included 
in the finance report being presented to Cabinet on 17 February 
2015.

Members considered this information and the following issues 
were raised:

 Had any consultation been undertaken prior to the decision 
being made to recommend iPads?

o The sub-group had met, and iPads had been given 
to Councillors G Taylor and S Wilkinson to trial, and 

Page 13



- 41 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

they had used them successfully.
 Councillor Alcock commented that this trial was limited.  He 

also asked whether Microsoft Word and Excel could be used 
on the iPads, and also whether it was possible to print from 
them?

o Officers responded that Breckland Council and 
Lincolnshire County Council members used iPads 
successfully.  Microsoft Word and Excel could be 
used on them.  Training for members on the 
functions of the iPad would be needed, and this was 
being drawn together.  It was possible to print from 
iPads

 Had the IT Working Group made any recommendations as to 
what applications could be added to the iPad and what it 
should be used for?

o The Interim ICT Manager advised that this issue 
needed to be addressed.

 When would roll-out of the new equipment take place?
o Roll-out would commence on Monday 11 May 2015, 

new members would receive their equipment first, 
followed be re-elected members.  All iPads would be 
loaded identically, and configured before the 
election, in readiness for roll-out.  In addition to roll-
out of the equipment, training was being arranged, 
and policies were being reviewed.     

 Councillor Aley (Vice-Chairman of the Working Group) 
commented that he had been very impressed with the iPad, its 
ease of use, and compatibility with existing systems and 
wireless printers (if these were to be used).

AGREED:

That the report of the Executive Director (Commissioning and 
Governance) be noted. 

(The Interim ICT Manager and the ICT Manager left the meeting 
at 7.10pm, following discussion of the above item). 

44. PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE 

At a meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel on 8 April 
2014, it had been agreed ‘that Portfolio Holders, including the 
Leader of the Council, be invited to attend Panel meetings, to 
provide updates on the work that their departments were 
undertaking, and that financial issues should also be included in 

Page 14



- 42 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

the updates’.
 
At the last meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel, it was 
agreed that the Panel wished to speak to the Portfolio Holder 
responsible for IT, in particular the equipment to be provided to 
members following the District Council Elections in May 2015.  
Alongside this, they also requested an update on his portfolio in 
general, and the current position.  To this end, the Portfolio Holder 
for Community Assets, Members Services and Special Projects 
attended to provide the update requested.  The following updates 
were provided:

 IT issues were on track, and the work undertaken by members 
of the Working Group had been comprehensive.

 The economy was currently the most important issue for South 
Holland and the ‘Grants 4 Growth’ scheme was an integral 
part of helping it to expand.  There had been a very positive 
take-up for grants from small businesses.

 A strategic overview of markets and car parks was in the 
process of being undertaken.

 The Portfolio Holder understood that progress was being 
made with regard to the Rail Freight Hub.

 Sport and Arts Development – Sport and art activities were in 
place to address anti-social behaviour; a Lincolnshire Sports 
Officer had been employed; funding for Sport-i-vate had been 
received via Lincs Sports; the Summer Fun Brochure detailing 
activities during the school holiday was being produced.

With regard to Section106 monies, members asked for an update 
on progress with regard to the bandstand and aviary at 
Ayscoughfee Gardens, a project which had had Section 106 
monies allocated to it. The Portfolio Holder advised that the 
current estimate for the work was over-budget.  Panel members 
were adamant that no more public money should be spent on the 
project, and that it be completed within the original budget 
allocated to it.  The Executive Director (Place) advised that the 
Assistant Director Community was dealing with the issue, and 
suggested to the Panel that he attend the next meeting to provide 
an update on the situation. The Panel responded that the Portfolio 
Holder should speak with the Assistant Director Community to 
consider the Panel’s discussions and to ensure that the project 
was completed within the budget and timescale.  They also 
requested that a report be made to the next Panel meeting 
covering the issues raised, a report on progress, and how it would 
move forward within the anticipated timeframe.  

With regard to sports funding, members questioned how this was 
publicised.   The Portfolio Holder responded that information was 

Page 15



- 43 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

available on the South Holland District Council website.  Members 
responded that it was very difficult to find the information on the 
website, and that communication issues in this respect were not 
good.  This issue around communications would be raised by the 
Panel at its next meeting when it received an update from the 
Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business 
Development, communications being one area of his Portfolio.

AGREED:

a) That the update provided by the Portfolio Holder for 
community Assets, Member Services and Special Projects be 
noted; 

b) That with regard to the project to erect a bandstand and new 
aviary at Ayscoughfee Gardens, the Portfolio Holder for 
Community Assets, Member Services and Special Projects 
liaise with the Assistant Director Community to consider the 
issues raised by the Panel, to ensure that the project was 
completed within the budget and timescale; and

c) That a report be presented to the next meeting of the Panel, 
covering the issues raised at this meeting relating to the 
bandstand and aviary at Ayscoughfee Gardens, details of 
progress, and how the project would move forward within the 
anticipated timeframe.

(The Portfolio Holder for Community Assets, Member Services 
and Special Projects left the meeting at 7.55pm, following 
discussion of the above item). 

RW 

RW 

45. MINUTES 

The minutes from the following meetings were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record:

 25 November 2014 – Performance Monitoring Panel; 
 3 December 2014 – Special joint meeting of the Performance 

Monitoring Panel and the Policy Development Panel; 
 12 January 2015 – Special joint meeting of the Performance 

Monitoring Panel and the Policy Development Panel

During discussion of the minutes of 25 November 2014, the 
following issues were raised:

 Minute 4 (a)(ii) (CCTV update) and minute 5 (b) (Crime and 
Disorder update) -  Was this information available, and had it 
been circulated to members?  Officers advised they would 

Page 16



- 44 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

enquire and advise members of the outcome.
 Minutes 7(b) – Members were advised that the Business Plan 

looking at Leisure Services would be discussed at the meeting 
of the Corporate Management Team on 2 February 2015.  
Members commented that the Task Group was still available 
to pick up anything arising from this, although the Panel 
should discuss it first.

 Minute 9 (b) – With regard to the proposed Gypsy and 
Traveller site in Spalding, members advised that they had 
received the information requested and were satisfied with the 
response.  However, they wanted to know why the issue with 
the road had not been resolved with the County Council before 
the planning application had been made.  The Executive 
Director (Place) replied that the background to the issue would 
be clarified, and reported back to members of the Panel.

AGREED:

a) That the minutes of the following meetings be agreed as a 
correct record:

i. 25 November 2014 – Performance Monitoring Panel; 
ii. 3 December 2014 – Special joint meeting of the 

Performance Monitoring Panel and the Policy 
Development Panel; and

iii. 12 January 2015 – Special joint meeting of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel and the Policy 
Development Panel

b) That the following issues arising from the minutes of 25 
November 2014 be addressed:

i. That the information requested in minute 4 (a) (ii) 
(CCTV update) and minute 5 (b) (Crime and Disorder 
update) be circulated to members;

ii. That issues arising from the discussion of the Business 
Plan looking at Leisure Services, by the Corporate 
Management Team on 2 February 2015, be considered 
further by the Panel; and

iii. That with regard to the proposed Gypsy and Traveller 
site in Spalding, the background to the issues with the 
road be clarified and reported back to members of the 
Panel. 

EH 

RW 

RS 

46. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 
10.3. 

There were none. 

Page 17



- 45 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

47. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were none. 

48. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were none. 

49. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 9 
December 2014.

It was noted that a decision would be made between 23 March 
2015 and 10 April 2014 to award a new roofing renewal contract 
for the housing stock.  Members questioned whether, when 
awarding the contract, consideration was given to the programme 
of work i.e. were all houses in an area re-roofed, regardless of 
what condition they were in, or was a judgement made on a 
house-by-house basis?  If a contractor was appointed first on the 
basis of re-roofing a specific number of properties, it would not 
allow for a judgement to be made as to which ones should have 
work undertaken on them.  The Executive Director (Place) 
responded that she would confirm the basis on which the contract 
was awarded. 

AGREED:

a) That the Key Decision Plan be noted; and

b) That the basis on which the re-roofing contract was awarded 
be ascertained i.e. was consideration given to the programme 
of work, and which houses were to be re-roofed, prior to the 
contract being awarded.  

RS/DH  

50. PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Democratic Services 
and Legal Manager which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.

The following issues were raised:

Page 18



- 46 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

 Portfolio Holder updates – Members agreed that future 
updates from Portfolio Holders should be more structured.  It 
was agreed that the update be time limited to 15 minutes, 
followed by questions from members of the Panel.  This new 
structure should be in place when the Portfolio Holder for 
Internal Services, Performance and Business Development 
attended the next meeting of the Panel.

 Portfolio Holder update/Communications – The issue of 
communications was raised earlier in the meeting during the 
Portfolio Holder update, with regard to sports funding and how 
it was publicised.  Members felt that there were issues 
regarding the Authority’s website and agreed that this should 
be raised with the Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, 
Performance and Business Development when he attended 
the next meeting of the Panel to provide a briefing.

 That the report covering the issues raised earlier in meeting 
during the Portfolio Holder update, relating to the bandstand 
and aviary at Ayscoughfee Gardens, details of progress, and 
how the project would move forward within the anticipated 
timeframe, be added to the Panel’s Work Programme.

 The Panel wished to thank the Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field 
Task Group for its work.

 No further Task Groups were to be set up until after the 
District Elections in May 2015.

AGREED:

a) That both sections of the Panel’s Work Programme, as set out 
in the report of the Democratic Services and Legal Manager, 
be noted; 

b) That future Portfolio Holder updates be structured, allowing 15 
minutes for the update, followed by questions from the Panel, 
and that this structure be used when the Portfolio Holder for 
Internal Services, Performance and Business Development 
attend the next Panel meeting on 3 March 2015;

c) That the issue of communications, particularly around the 
South Holland District Council website, be raised with the 
Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and 
Business Development, when he attended the next meeting of 
the Panel to provide an update; and

d) That the report covering the issues raised earlier in meeting 
during the Portfolio Holder update, relating to the bandstand 
and aviary at Ayscoughfee Gardens, details of progress, and 
how the project would move forward within the anticipated 

LE, CM 

LE, CM 

CM 

Page 19



- 47 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
27 January 2015

timeframe, be added to the Panel’s Work Programme.  

(The meeting ended at 8.35pm.)

(End of minutes)

Page 20



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 9 February 2015

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

Amanda Taylor, Democratic Services Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764837 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made.  Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the 
Policy Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

The definition of a “key decision” is:
“A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more Wards of the Council and 
/ or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any single financial year above the 
threshold of £71,200 in respect of revenue expenditure and £175,600 in respect of capital expenditure.”

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 9.

mailto:member.services@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing 
Landlord

Spalding Gypsy 
and Traveller 
Site

To award the works contract. Portfolio Holder for Assets 
and Property, Procurement 
Lincolnshire.

Portfolio Holder briefings – 
ongoing.

Housing Manager 
Between  23 Mar 2015 and 
10 Apr 2015

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing 
Landlord

New roofing 
renewal contract 
for council 
housing stock

To award new roofing renewal contract 
for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Manager 
Between  23 Mar 2015 and 
10 Apr 2015

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing 
Landlord

New central 
heating upgrade 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new central heating upgrade 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Manager 
Between  23 Mar 2015 and 
10 Apr 2015

P
age 22



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing 
Landlord

New drainage 
repair contract 
for council 
housing stock

To award new drainage repair contract 
for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Manager 
Between  23 Mar 2015 and 
10 Apr 2015

*Cabinet Membership
Councillor G A Porter (Leader of the Council)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development and Big Society)
Councillor P S Przyszlak – (Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Strategic Planning)
Councillor M G Chandler (Portfolio Holder for Regulatory Services)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning)
Councillor H R Johnson (Portfolio Holder for Community Assets, Member Services and Special Projects)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder for Housing Landlord)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business Development)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Amanda Taylor, Democratic Services Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764837 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 23

mailto:member.services@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Place (S151)

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 3 March 2015

(Author: Paul Jackson - Planning Manager)

Subject: Resourcing within the Planning Service

Purpose: To update the Performance Monitoring Panel on resourcing within the 
Planning Service

Recommendation:
 
1) That the Performance Monitoring Panel notes the contents of the report and makes a 

recommendation, or recommendations, based on any of the options set out below.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 At PMP held on 16 September 2014 the Panel raised concerns regarding completion of the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan and delivery of the Planning Service. Consequently, the 
Planning Manager attended PMP on 25 November 2014 in order to discuss the following 
issues:

 Concerns regarding whether the timescale for the delivery of the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan was achievable and any consequences for the Council if it was 
not; and

 A piece of work being undertaken on the delivery of the planning service. 

1.2 The Planning Manager reported that:

 He believed the timetable for producing the SEL Local Plan remained achievable 
although this was dependent upon resource remaining within the team and the input of 
dedicated resource management; and

 He was seeking to resolve resourcing issues within the Planning Service that were 
impacting adversely upon performance.

1.3 In relation to the both matters, the Planning Manager further reported that he was intending 
to put forward proposals to Strategy Board in December 2014 in order to address concerns 
relating to both resource and delivery.

2.0 2013-14 RESOURCING AND DELIVERY

2.1 The Planning Manager presented a detailed report to Strategy Board on 16 December 2014 
relating to the Planning Service’s performance and resource.  The purpose of the report was 
twofold:

(1) To consider the existing staff structure and performance, service capacity, and future 
resource provision within the Development Management and Local Plan Teams; and

Page 25

Agenda Item 10.



(2) To agree additional temporary resource to ensure future operational resilience.

2.2 The report focussed on performance, operational capacity and service demands.

2.3 It made clear that the Planning Service had last been restructured in 2011, at which time 
there was a decline in workloads and associated income streams.  The 2011 restructure was 
also reflective of the then intention to formalise joint-working arrangements with Boston 
Borough Council (BBC) in connection with the production of a conjoined Local Plan.  These 
shared arrangements with BBC are in place and are on-going.

2.4 The report clarified that, in simple terms, the professional FTE staff complement up until 
2011 comprised 20 professional and technical staff.  The professional complement since that 
time had comprised 11.5 FTE led by a shared Planning Manager supported by a Deputy.  
Given the shared management role, the 2014 staff complement effectively comprised 12.5 
FTE.  Overall, this represented a reduction of 5.5 FTE when compared to 2011.

2.5 In addition, the Planning Manager highlighted that 2013-4 had seen a significant increase in 
staff turnover and that the department was holding a number of vacancies.  In short, the 
report evidenced that after a fairly lengthy period of relative staff stability the Planning 
Service had seen much recent change and the existing staff complement was significantly 
undermined by continuing vacancies.

2.6 At the time of writing the report, the then staff structure of 12.5 FTE was, as a consequence 
of continuing vacancies, reduced to 9.

2.7 The Planning Manager further reported that;

 income streams were rising and had done so since 2013-4;
 the number of applications received and their complexity had also risen;
 performance in DM was consequently poor across the board (other than in relation to 

appeal success rates);
 the government had introduced additional targets aimed at speeding up delivery; and 

that,
 in the context of Local Plans work, the South Holland element of the joint Local Plans 

Team had by then been operating without two of its three full time staff complement 
for over six months.  He clarified that this reduced capacity had contributed in no 
small measure to slowing down production of the local plan evidence base.  He did, 
however, state that on the positive side, and with the assistance of colleagues shared 
with Boston Borough Council, Local Plan Steering Groups had continued to meet 
regularly to discuss output on work relating to settlement hierarchy and policy 
formulation.

2.8 The report concluded that:

a) There were presently insufficient resources within both the DM Team and the South 
Holland element of the conjoined Policy Team to deliver either an effective operational 
service or a Local Plan to timetable.

b) Even at capacity the DM Team was under-resourced given current workload demands.  
Fee income had risen and continued to do so.  Workload had increased and the 
department could not presently reduce its backlog as individual officers were carrying 
caseloads of in excess of 40 applications each.  This was unsustainable.  As a direct 
consequence, performance continued to fall.  Conservation as a specialism was absent.

Page 26



c) At an operational level, this situation placed the Council at significant risk of falling into 
special measures, thereby losing an element of local control.

d) At capacity, the South Holland element of the conjoined Policy Team comprised 3 
planners.  Of these posts, two had been vacant for over six months although both posts 
were due to be filled shortly.  Presently, the only officer in-post was the Joint Planning 
Unit Manager and his role is one that spans both Councils.

e) In the context of strategic planning, there was a considerable risk of the Local Plan 
timetable falling behind schedule as project management could not be facilitated in the 
absence of resource.  This represented a significant gap.

f) There were insufficient resources and skills within the combined Policy teams to deliver 
the new Local Plan to the timetable currently set out in the agreed framework.  There 
was, however, agreement in principle with BBC to engage dedicated project 
management support to the JPU to deliver the conjoined South East Lincolnshire Local 
Plan.

g) Overall, there was an immediate and pressing need to recruit and retain both 
permanent staff and additional temporary staff.  Failure to do so would result in the 
performance of the DM Team reducing to levels likely to impact adversely on income 
retention or local control.  Failure to recruit to and effectively project manage work of the 
conjoined Policy Team would inevitably slow down production of the Local Plan.  This 
would result in the failure to deliver an up-to-date local plan framework.  This would put 
the Council at increased risk of developers promoting spatially unacceptable 
speculative schemes incapable of delivering the necessary infrastructure.  

3.0 PROPOSED RESOURCING

3.1 The Planning Manager outlined that it was critical to immediate and future operational 
capacity and the delivery of the new Local Plan that vacant posts were filled in the short-
term.  He outlined that the recruitment exercise was proving difficult in the current market.  
He stated that reliance had needed to be placed on agency cover at an operational level but 
such was much more difficult and, in the longer-term, problematic in the context of local plan 
delivery.

3.2 In tandem with the above, the Planning Manager highlighted that there was an equally critical 
need to build capacity and skills.  There were significant gaps in service provision, even if the 
department was operating at capacity.  The added risk was that unanticipated medium-to-
long-term sickness, given the low staff complement, could significantly and adversely affect 
performance and/or Local Plan delivery.

3.3 The Planning Manager expressed the view that, coupled with the need to fill vacancies, the 
critical gaps in staff resource accorded to the following:

 a Senior Planning Officer role within the DM Team
 a part-time Conservation/Heritage role within the DM Team; and
 a Project Management role within the conjoined Planning Policy Team.

Page 27



3.4 He concluded there was a need for additional resource and sought agreement to the 
following:

 the provision of a £235,000 resource within the departmental budget to recruit to the 
following three temporary posts: Senior Planning Officer (2 years) and Conservation 
Officer (part-time) (3 years) within the DM Team and a Local Plans Project Management 
Officer (18 months).

3.5 Strategy Board were entirely supportive of these proposals and clearly recognised the impact 
vacancies were having on service delivery.  As a consequence, the Board agreed to 
immediately provide funds for all three posts for the temporary periods outlined above.

4.0 THE PRESENT SITUATION

4.1 Consequent on all of the above, the Planning Service acted without delay.  They immediately 
and successfully recruited to all three of the new temporary posts.  Briefly;

 the additional Senior Planning Officer commenced work on 5 January 2015;
 the Conservation Officer role was also filled on 5 January 2015; and
 Local Plan Project Management resource was sourced and began working with the Joint 

Policy Unit Manager on 5 January 2015.  It is important to note that this is a supportive 
role that, whilst on-going, has been added to provide focus and project management skills 
to complement the existing resource.

4.2 In addition to the above, the two vacant Policy Officers posts were both filled in December 
2014, both officers commencing work just before Christmas.

4.3 As of today, there is only one full-time vacancy within the Planning Service.  This is a senior 
officer role within Development Management.  This role will be re-advertised shortly but the 
introduction of the additional senior officer role covers this gap and had added immediate 
capacity as the officer employed has significant and extensive DM experience.

5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND CONSEQUENCES

5.1 The introduction of additional capacity within the Planning Service, to enable it to flex to meet 
with current demand, is wholly welcomed.  It has had an immediate and positive effect upon 
existing departmental staff and, more importantly, performance.

5.2 In the context of the DM Team, January and February saw a marked improvement in 
statistical performance.  The longer-term benefits are harder to predict as income and 
application numbers remain high and there remains a single full-time vacancy.  However, this 
post will be re-advertised shortly and this should, when filled, deliver greater resilience to 
meet with future demand.

5.3 In the context of the Local Plans team, the introduction of dedicated project management has 
enabled a thorough review of workload, workstreams and project timescales to be 
undertaken.  This has highlighted that the 6 months plus gap in staff resource has had an 
adverse effect upon work associated with the production of the Local Plan.  In essence, 
whilst existing workstreams were maintained with the assistance of our Boston colleagues, 
the consequence has been farther down the line.  Tandem work on other policy areas could 
not be begun and, as a consequence, there has been some slippage in the anticipated 
timescales.  In addition, the Council’s viability consultants have expressed the clear view that 
the next iteration of the Local Plan should be subject to the process of ‘whole plan viability 
assessment (WVPA)’.  This is a matter that, nationally, has caused delays in Local Plan 
production and impacts upon the evidence base; and, more importantly, the likelihood of site 

Page 28



delivery.  These issues will be considered in the round when the South East Lincolnshire 
Joint Strategic Planning Committee next meets on 6 March 2015.  The report to that 
Committee will set out the issues and seek agreement to a revised Local Development 
Scheme (LDS).  This is a matter for the Joint Committee to agree, with or without revisions, 
and the outcomes cannot here be pre-determined.

6.0 OPTIONS

6.1 PMP is invited to:

1. Consider and note the contents of this report and, if satisfied, request that no further 
update reports be received; 

2. Consider and note the contents of this report and request that a further update be 
received within a specified timeframe; or 

3. Do nothing.

7.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

7.1 This is an update report and contains no specific recommendations.

8.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

8.1 The production of a sound Local Plan.

9.0 IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

9.1.1 Carbon Footprint/Environmental Issues implications have been considered, and in the 
opinion of the report author, there are none. 

9.2 Constitution & Legal

9.2.1 Constitution and Legal implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 
author, there are none. 

9.3 Contracts

9.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report author, there 
are none. 

9.4 Corporate Priorities

9.4.1  Corporate Priorities implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 
author, there are none.

9.5 Crime and Disorder 

9.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 
author, there are none. 

9.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

9.6.1 There are no direct equality and diversity implications arising from this this report. However, 
it is a requirement of the Local Plan process, LDS, and indeed all Local Plan documents, 

Page 29



that equality and diversity issues are fully considered and taken on board.  This equally 
applies to all of the processes undertaken by the DM Team.  The Statement of Community 
Involvement ensures that all Local Plan documents involve widespread consultation and the 
full participation of residents and businesses within South Holland District (and Boston 
Borough). The views, needs and aspirations of each district's diverse population will in this 
manner be reflected in subsequent plans and policies aimed at meeting the various needs 
of all societal groupings. 

9.7 Financial 

9.7.1 Financial implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report author, there 
are none. 

9.8 Health & Wellbeing

9.8.1 Health and Wellbeing implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 
author, there are none. 

9.9 Risk Management 

9.9.1 Risk Management implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 
author, there are none. 

9.10 Staffing

9.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report author, there 
are none. 

9.11 Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales

9.11.1 Financial implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report author, there 
are none. 

10.00 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

10.1 All wards/communities are affected.

11.0 ACRONYMS

11.1 BBC – Boston Borough Council
DM – Development Management
FTE – Full Time Equivalent
LDS – Local Development Scheme
JPU – Joint Planning Unit
SEL – South East Lincolnshire
WPVA – Whole Plan Viability Assessment

Page 30



Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Paul Jackson – Planning Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764402
Email: paul.jackson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Page 31

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:paul.jackson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director, Commissioning and Governance

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 3 March 2015

Author: Jessica Woodhouse - Corporate Improvement & Performance Team Leader

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3 2014/15

Purpose: To provide an update on delivery against the 2011-2015 Corporate Plan for the 
period 1 October 2014 to 31 December 2014

Recommendation: 

1)  To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Performance Overview report (Appendix A) provides Members and residents with 
information about the Council’s delivery against its Corporate Priorities and on the Council’s 
Corporate Health.

1.2 This covering report presents a summary of the status of the Council’s key projects and 
indicators, as well as the direction of travel since the previous quarter.

1.3 Areas of success, where performance has improved since the last report (Q2 2014/15) are 
also brought to Members’ attention, as are areas of concern where performance is below 
anticipated outcomes or is worsening.  These items were discussed at Performance Board 
on 29 January 2015 and were highlighted to CMT on 16 February 2015.  Actions agreed 
are included in the summary below and in the commentary of Appendix A.

1.4 Key Projects

1.5 Current Status of Key Projects (below):  Project performance in quarter 3 is assessed as 
‘good’, with 9 projects (75%) marked ‘Green’, meaning they are on track for delivery within 
anticipated timescales and resource.  3 projects (25%) are ‘Amber’ meaning these projects 
are experiencing minor issues, but are still considered to be deliverable.  

Page 33

Agenda Item 11.



1.6 Project Direction of Travel (below):  The overall direction of travel of key projects is 
assessed as ‘stable’, with 92% of project status’ remaining the same as last quarter and 
only one project having decreased in status.  This is:

 Preparation of South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (reduced from ‘Green’ at Q2 to 
‘Amber’ at Q3):  Service commentary – “Owing to recruitment delays in the SHDC 
Planning Policy Section, there has been some slippage in the preparation of site 
options for housing and employment developments. Consequently, it is now expected 
that the Local Plan will be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in early 2016. The 
South East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee will confirm revised dates 
for plan preparation at its next meeting in early March 2015.”

1.7 Key Performance Indicators

1.8 Current status of key performance indicators (below):  Indicator performance in quarter 
3 is assessed as ‘good’, with 12 indicators (67%) marked ‘Green’, meaning that 
performance is as or above expected and the anticipated outcome has been met or 
exceeded.  1 indicator (6%) is ‘Amber’ meaning performance in these areas is below the 
level of expected performance but is within tolerance, and 4 indicators (22%) are ‘Red’, 
meaning performance has not been achieved or is below the agreed tolerance.  Data was 
not provided within the required timeframe for 1 indicator (6%).

Page 34



1.9 Performance Indicator Direction of Travel (below):  The overall direction of travel of key 
performance indicators is assessed as ‘stable to improving’.  3 indicators (18%) have 
improved since the last report, 12 indicators (71%) are stable and 2 (12%) have worsened.

1.10 The indicators that have improved are as follows.  Further detail is provided in ‘Areas of 
Success’ at 1.12 below.

 Average time to re-let SHDC property – status changed from ‘Amber’ in Q2 to ‘Green’ 
in Q3, with performance having stabilised and being achieved in line with anticipated 
outcomes.

 Number of missed collections per 100,000 households - status has changed from 
‘Red’ in Q2 to ‘Green’ in Q3.  

 % of Major planning applications determined within 13 weeks – status has 
changed from ‘Red’ in Q2 to ‘Green’ in Q3.  

1.11 The indicators that have worsened are as follows.  Further detail is provided in the ‘Areas of 
Concern’ section at 1.13 below.

 % of building consultancy applications responded to within 21 days – status has 
changed from ‘Amber’ in Q2 to ‘Red’ in Q3.  

 Non-Domestic rates in year collections rate – status has changed from ‘Amber’ in 
Q2 to ‘Red’ in Q3.   

1.12 AREAS OF SUCCESS

1.13 The following indicators have achieved very high performance, or their performance has 
improved since the last report:

 Number of missed collections per 100,000 households:  This was previously an 
‘Area of Concern’ and as a result an investigation was commenced by the Corporate 
Improvement & Performance and Environmental Services Teams into performance 
issues.  The investigation included analysing data for every property missed over a 3 
month period to explore the nature of each missed collection.  These were grouped into 
areas to work on to enable the operational team to address recurring issues, including 

Page 35



resolving access problems, addressing pre-7am starts, implementing a new process for 
assisted collections with more customer interaction and improved communication, and 
issuing new work wear more suited to the tasks required to improve practice.  As a 
result there is now a clearer link between operations and performance, which has been 
improving, and the investigation has been recognised as a good collaborative effort.

 % of Major planning applications determined within 13 weeks:  The recent 
performance issues that previously made this an ‘Area of Concern’ are starting to be 
resolved, improving from ‘Red’ at Q2 to ‘Green’ in Q3, representing a significant 
improvement in year to date performance.  The service has attributed the increase in 
performance to having resolved resource issues, with three new posts having been 
created and filled.  Performance will continue to be monitored closely through 
Performance Board to ensure that improvement is sustained.

1.14 AREAS OF CONCERN

1.15 The following indicators have fallen significantly below the anticipated outcome, or their 
performance has worsened since the last report:

 % of Building consultancy applications responded to within 21 days:  
Performance remains ‘Red’ and has worsened since last quarter.  The service had 
been reporting resourcing issues, though recruitment has since taken place.  Q4 
performance is expected to improve as a result, though year end outcomes are not 
expected to be achieved.  There are no statutory penalties attached to this, income is 
being maintained, and the service is maintaining good communication with customers.  

 To carry out a programme of inspections for licensed premises within the district 
based on a 10% sample:  Performance remains ‘Red’, though has improved slightly.  
The service has been concentrating on taxi inspections instead of premises inspections, 
due to a need to focus on high risk activities.  There have also been resource issues, 
which are being addressed by drawing resource from support services to release 
officers to conduct inspections.  It is not however anticipated that year end targets will 
be achieved.  The service is revising the inspection programme to focus on high risk 
premises initially for the start of April 2015.

 Non-Domestic Rates in year collection rate: Performance is ‘Red’ and has not 
achieved anticipated outcome for Q3.  The service reports that the shortfall in monthly 
performance was anticipated as a number of businesses are taking advantage of their 
new ability to pay their liabilities over 12 months rather than 10 months.  It is anticipated 
that this will deteriorate as the year progresses as the impact is cumulative.  The 
service has suggested re-profiling of monthly targets for 2015/16 using 2014/15 as a 
baseline for benchmarking.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 No recommendations made.  Report for information and to be noted only.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 No recommendations made.  Report for information and to be noted only. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Not applicable.

Page 36



5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the 
Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Constitution and Legal Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 The report presents progress monitoring against delivery of the corporate priorities.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights implications have been considered and it is the 
opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1 Health & Wellbeing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 Risk implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that there 
are no implications.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.11.1 Stakeholder / Consultation / Timescale implications have been considered and it is the 
opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No Wards or Communities are affected

Page 37



7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 CMT – Corporate Management Team

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Jessica Woodhouse – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Team Leader
Telephone Number: 01362 656388
Email: jessica.woodhouse@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Jessica Woodhouse – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Team Leader

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Performance Overview Report – Qtr 3

Page 38

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:jessica.woodhouse@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT

Quarter 3 2014/15

1Page 39



Foreword

The quarterly performance report is a collection of our key indicator and projects that report in this quarter.  
Monitoring the performance of these indicators or projects helps us to endure we are on track to achieve 
the priorities we have set in our Corporate Plan, working together with our partners, to feed upwards as a 
‘golden thread’ to achieve the overall vision for the district.

To find out more information on the way we manage or performance, please follow the link… Performance 
Management Framework

Our Corporate Plan identified a vision and five key priorities for our district, to find out more information 
please follow the link… Corporate Plan 2011-2015

How to interpret this report

R
Performance has not been achieved or is below the anticipated outcome.

A
Performance is below level of expected performance but is within the tolerance of the anticipated 
outcome. 
Project is experiencing some minor issues but is still deliverable.

G
Performance is as expected and the anticipated outcome has been met or exceeded. 
Project is on track for delivery within anticipated timescales and resource.

2Page 40



SH 1 To Be a Forward Looking Council

Project Title
Previous 
Reporting 

Period

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – House Building Project G G

The final scheme of this initial phase (Broadgate, Whaplode 
Drove) is pending completion, having been delayed from its 
original completion date. This is being monitored and dialogue 
being maintained with the contractor to ensure completion is 
achieved as soon as possible.

Preparation of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) G G
Work on the preparation of the CIL remains closely linked to 
progress on the preparation of the Local Plan (see page 4 for 
update). 

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

YtD

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

To maintain occupancy levels above 85% of 
the industrial units portfolio 92.33% G 85.00% 92.88% G

Quarter 1 occupancy rate was 91.33%. 
Quarter 2 occupancy rate was 94.00%. 
Quarter 3 occupancy rate is 93.37%. 
Year to date occupancy rate is 92.88%.

2

P
age 41



SH 2 To Enable our Communities

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Current 
Actual Comments

Members Designated Budgets – Number of initiatives 
supported 61 No. 113 No.

To date 113 applications for initiatives have been received, which have 
involved a total of 37 district councillors from 18 district wards.  
Approximately £92.5k has been spent on projects.  
Quarter three projects included contributions towards the provision of 
facilities for schools and young people, home-start and Mencap events, 
community action projects, and works carried out within the wards, etc.

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

Average time to re-let SHDC property 18 Days A 17 Days 17 Days G

The service is continuing to monitor the effect 
of the change in process for asbestos 
inspections/works and is liaising closely with 
contractors to reduce the number of days lost 
where possible.

Number of affordable homes built 48 No. G 63 No. 65 No. G

Year to date (April - December) there were 65 
affordable housing completions out of the 189 
net additional dwelling stock completions. This 
equated to 34% which is just above the 
affordable housing target of 33.3%.

3

P
age 42



SH 3 To Have Pride in South Holland

Project Title
Previous 
Reporting 

Period

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

Preparation of South East Lincolnshire Local Plan G A

Owing to recruitment delays in the SHDC Planning Policy 
Section, there has been some slippage in the preparation of site 
options for housing and employment developments. 
Consequently, it is now expected that the Local Plan will be 
submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in early 2016. The South 
East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee will confirm 
revised dates for plan preparation at its next meeting in early 
March 2015.

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

% of refuse that goes to recycling 31.30% G 32.00% 31.03% G

The impact of the quantity and quality 
initiatives undertaken should be evident in Qtr 
4 in that the current slightly below target year 
to date performance will achieve/surpass the 
annual target.

Kilograms of residual waste collected 127.10 G 133.00 130.76 G

Qtr 3 is renowned for an increase in residual 
waste collected. As such a number of 
campaigns and roadshows have targeted this 
seasonal growth this quarter with an aim to 
encourage and support residents into reducing 
and recycling more. 
The waste and recycling team continue to 
refresh and bring new waste minimisation 
campaigns forward, with initial focus on items 
that householders struggle to recycle and 
dispose of e.g. toys, electrical items, video 
tapes. 

4

P
age 43



Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

Number of missed collections per 100,000 
households 33.0 R 33.0 30.1 G

Anticipated outcome re-profiled to reflect 
realistic performance expectations for 
2014/15.  The result of work carried out by 
officers and crew members has brought the 
performance in line with the year end target 
likely to now be achieved.  

5

P
age 44



SH 4 To Support our Local Economy

Project Title
Previous 
Reporting 

Period

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

East Midlands LEGE (‘Grants for Growth’) G G 20 Businesses engaged, 4 grants offered, 7  paid in full and 8 
part payments

Spalding Town Centre Regeneration G G Development Brief agreed, will go out to marketplace late 
January

Holbeach Town Centre Regeneration G G Awaiting decision on Growth Funding for Peppermint Junction

S106 funding for Spalding Town Centre G G The Economic Development service is assisting the Town Centre 
Manager where possible ahead of the next Board meeting.

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

% of building regulations responded to with 
21 days of receipt 98.10% G 100% 95.03% G

The quarter started off target while new staff 
were settling in and learning new systems, 
and Building Control Surveyors were helping 
Building Consultancy.  Performance is now 
back in line with anticipated outcomes and the 
trend going forward is to remain on target.

% of building consultancy applications 
responded to within 21 days 56.92% A 90.00% 38.73% R

The quarter started very poorly, due to 
resourcing issues. Recruitment has taken 
place and performance is being brought back 
to the required level, which is expected to be 
shown in quarter 4. Customers are being kept 
informed of progress.

6

P
age 45



SH 5 To Develop Stronger Communities

Project Title
Previous 
Reporting 

Period

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

Coordinated Response to Anti Social Behaviour A A

Working group meeting held in December to continue the work on the 
internal implementation of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 
2014. Key actions continue to be discussed with the Community 
Development Manager. Training on the new Act took place in November for 
key officers and further training to cover all affected officers is being looked 
into.

CCTV A A
Final proposals and technical specifications have been received. The order 
for the capital hardware has been placed and the installation plan was due 
to be finalised in January 2015.

South Holland Centre – Developing young 
people’s engagement with LOV arts venues G G

During December, the Lincolnshire One Venues network received the 
excellent news that the Paul Hamlyn Foundation has awarded a further 
three years of funding and in addition, the Esme Fairburn Foundation has 
awarded four years of new funding.   This will allow the further development 
of the network, and of the highly successful, and now renowned, LOV 
Young Peoples Programme to continue, strengthening the shared central 
Project team and funding more activity.

Health Initiatives G G
Health Walks, Exercise Referrals, Fit Kids and Healthy Cooking and 
Growing projects are all progressing on target. Completion rates for 
Exercise Referrals are good, feedback from the cooking and growing 
project is positive and health walks continue to attract good numbers.

Orchestras Live Partnership Project. G G

The South Holland Centre Youth Takeover group worked with the City of 
London Sinfonia to produce, programme and promote a special orchestral 
concert which took place at the South Holland Centre in November. The 
orchestra performed specially chosen pieces alongside local young 
musicians. The concert also featured new compositions and special 
arrangements of music by the young musicians. It was a fantastic 
experience for the young programmers and musicians and the concert was 
enjoyed by an appreciative audience. This project is now completed.

7

P
age 46



Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Current 
Actual Comments

Net additional dwelling stock (including demolitions and 
conversions) 115 No. 189 No. The net amount of 189 for the period April - December includes 18 

conversions and 1 demolition.

House building completions - % that are affordable 
homes 42% 34%

Year to date (April - December) there were 65 affordable housing 
completions out of the 189 net additional dwelling stock completions. This 
equated to 34% which is just above the affordable housing target of 33.3%.

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases referred to 
ASB Officer 30 No. 39 No.

The Anti-Social Behaviour Officer has been the lead officer on 39 cases to 
date and has also supported the Police and Housing Associations with 
cases they hold to ensure an effective response in both supporting the 
victims and taking appropriate action against the perpetrators. Alongside 
the casework 67 level one warnings have also been issued, 13 of which 
had to be escalated to a level two warning and 3 were escalated to 
Acceptable Behaviour Contracts.

Anti-social behaviour – number of cases resolved by 
the council’s ASB officer within 3 months 7 No. 10 No.

This is slightly lower than the same period last year. Over the last quarter, 
cases have been much more complex requiring a greater deal of support 
for victims and working with partner agencies.

Overall participation in cultural activity (No. of 
visitors/attendances)

223,790 
No.

351,485 
No.

The varied programme on offer to residents across art, culture, heritage 
and leisure is reflected in the overall participation figure which is consistent 
with figures in 2013/14. School participation numbers at the Peele leisure 
centre in the first half of the year has impacted on the overall figure. 
However, Quarter 3 leisure centre figures are similar to last year's Quarter 
3 figures.

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

Spend on community grants £65,513 G £139,148 £137,751 G
Service Level Agreements are monitored 
and services delivered in line with the 
requirements. All spend is on track.

8

P
age 47



Corporate Health

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Current 
Actual Comments

Number of Planning enforcement actions taken 4 No. 7 No. 2 Enforcement Notices and one S215 Notice issued compared to one 
Enforcement Notice and 2 S215 Notices in the previous quarter.

Council Tax in year collection rate. 58.45% 86.29% Performance is currently 0.02% up on the same period last year (0.06% 
behind last month). 

Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for licensed premises within the district 
based on a 10% sample per annum

2.43% R 7.50% 4.69% R

Inspections are below target and additional 
work is being picked up in Q4 to get back 
on track. At the same time the service is 
revising the inspection programme to focus 
on high risk premises initially for the start of 
April 15

To carry out a programme of inspections 
for taxis (private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage) within the district based on a 
10% sample per annum

10.83% G 7.50% 19.63% G

Inspections are on target for year end. At 
the same time the service is implementing 
improvements to the taxi process, to enable 
greater efficiencies to be gained.  The 
actual year to date figures, are above 
anticipated outcomes due to a full review of 
taxis being carried out.

% of households seeking help where the 
council has acted to prevent 
homelessness

23.00% G 20.00% Data not 
provided

Data not 
provided Data not provided

% of rent collected against rent charged 95.63% G 98.00% 96.85% G

Officers continue to monitor accounts 
closely: liaising with Housing Benefit, 
identifying cases for Discretionary Housing 
Payments, offering tenancy support, 
referring to Citizens Advice Bureau.

% of Major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks 50.00% R 60.00% 66.67% G

Above profile, performance improved by 
agreeing extensions of time and extra 
resource put in place.

9

P
age 48



Indicator Title Previous 
Actual

Previous 
Reporting 

Period
Anticipated 

Outcome
Current 
Actual

Current 
Reporting 

Period
Comments

% of Planning applications approved 87.82% A 92.00% 88.60% A

Slightly below profile, reflecting the nature 
of applications received, where it has not 
always proved possible to negotiate 
acceptable amendments or where there are 
fundamental policy issues.

% of Planning applications determined 
(within statutory time periods) 42.86% R 70.00% 57.30% R

Performance is still below profile, though 
has improved recently with assistance of 
additional resource.

% of benefit paid correctly 99.00% G 99.00% 100.00% G

The net value of errors is still quite small 
and the performance for SHDC is within 
acceptable limits.  Work continues with 
enhancing the training and quality 
assurance function to maintain and improve 
performance in this area.

Non-Domestic rates in year collections 
rate 58.02% A 87.75% 85.03% R

Performance is 2.72% down on the monthly 
target. The shortfall in monthly performance 
(compared to previous years) was 
anticipated as a number of businesses are 
taking advantage of their new ability to pay 
their liabilities over 12 months rather than 
10 months. 

10

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Vicky Thomson – Democratic Services and Legal Manager

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 3 March 2015

(Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:

That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion.
 

1.1 Background

1.1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its work programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix 1 sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from Officers or Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new items 
are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix 2 sets out the Task Groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the Task Group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the Task Group
 When the Task Group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for Councillors to monitor the progress of its work programme.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Members to feed into the Panel’s Calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

Page 51

Agenda Item 12.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 The Calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide Members 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed Task Groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 There are no direct Carbon Footprint and Environmental Issue implications associated with 
this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Carbon 
Footprint and Environmental Issue implications will be assessed.  

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 There are no direct Constitution and Legal implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Constitution and Legal 
implications will be assessed.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 There are no direct Contract implications associated with this report.  As individual items 
are progressed through the work programme, their Contract implications will be assessed.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, Councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities. 

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 There are no direct Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Crime and Disorder 
implications will be assessed.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 There are no direct Equality and Diversity and Human Rights implications associated with 
this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Equality 
and Diversity and Human Rights implications will be assessed.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 There are no direct Financial implications associated with this report. As individual items 
are progressed through the work programme, their Financial implications will be assessed.

5.8 Health and Wellbeing

5.8.1 There are no direct Health and Wellbeing implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their health and Wellbeing 
implications will be assessed.

Page 52



5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 There are no direct Risk Management implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Risk Management 
implications will be assessed.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 There are no direct Staffing implications associated with this report.  As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their Staffing implications will be assessed.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation  / Timescales

5.11.1 There are no direct Stakeholder/Consultation/Timescale implications associated with this 
report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their implications 
will be assessed.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 When a task group is considered for inclusion on the Panel’s Work Programme, it is 
assessed against criteria covering Importance, Impact and Value for Money.  The ‘Impact’ 
and ‘Value for Money’ score indicators consider how strongly the issue will affect a ward(s), 
customer group(s) or service area(s).  Only issues scoring highly will be included on the 
Work Programme.

7.0 ACRONYMS

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Lynn Eldred (Principal Democratic Services Officer)

Christine Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix 1 
Appendix 2

Work Programme Calendar
Task Group Work Programme 2014/15

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 
ITEMS

Date of Meeting Agenda items

3 March 2015 
(moved from 7 
April 2015)

 Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and 
Business Development to attend to provide an update on his 
Portfolio in general, and on the current position.  Particular 
area for consideration to be issues around Communications.

 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety and 
how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups 
and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months 
by the Portfolio Holder for Localism, Economic Development 
and Big Society. (Issues raised at Panel meeting 25 November 
2014 to be reported back).

 Planning - Update report on the general position regarding the 
Planning department, and the outcome of the Planning 
Manager’s proposals (following update to Panel 25 November 
2014).      

 Quarter 3 Performance Report    
 Update on construction of bandstand and new aviary at 

Ayscoughfee Gardens – budget and timescale (issue raised at 
meeting of PMP 27 January 2015).

 Update on the following joint Task Groups (Policy 
Development Panel members invited to attend meeting for this 
item) – 1)Leisure Task Group; and 2) Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field Task Group.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).

 Diarise for September 2015 - Annual Inspection of Planning Files 
(postponed a year from September 2014)  

 At a meeting following the District Council elections in May 2015, 
consideration to be given to the necessity for future reports on progress of 
the restructure of the CSU (from recommendations of the reformed CSU 
Task Group).

 Following District Council elections in May 2015 - Biennial Review of 
Implemented Planning Decisions – To consider the following in respect of 
the tour in 2015: a) Members to decide if there were sufficient properties to 
visit; b) Members to provide suggestions of properties to visit; and c) 
Members to decide how the tour should be undertaken and how properties 
should be reviewed and scored. Panel to decide if the above items should 
be considered as part of the next scheduled meeting, or as an additional 
pre-meeting.     

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2014/2015

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task Group

Proposed 
date of report 
to Panel

Effectiveness of CCTV Task 
Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward.

Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision.

Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from 
the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big 
Society on the position regarding CCTV.  
Performance information will be available on 
the new system in the future, once it 
becomes operational.  The Task Group will 
remain in operation to scrutinise 
performance and will start to do this once 
the information becomes available.

6 November 
2012 

21 November 
2012 

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman)

Interim report 
to PMP 29 
January 2013 

Leisure Task Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members from 

 What did South Holland as a District 
really want? What form would this take 
i.e. local government provision, joint 
provision with private enterprise or sole 
private enterprise provision?

30 May 
2012

21 January 
2014

G R Aley 
(Chairman)
D Ashby
A Casson
G K Dark

Interim report 
presented to 
joint 
PMP/PDP – 
19 August 

P
age 57



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task Group

Proposed 
date of report 
to Panel

the Performance Monitoring 
and Policy Development 
Panels. 

 What work was being undertaken by 
other areas of the Council? 

 What contracts were currently in place? 
 Who was writing the contracts that were 

currently in place with providers? Could a 
legal perspective be sought on the quality 
of the contract? 

 What were the actual costs of the 
facilities? 

 Why did people not use the facilities? 
 What were the satisfaction levels of 

current users? 
 What local groups used the facilities? 
 What did employers within the area 

want? 
 What facilities were available in 

Breckland and East Lindsey? 
 Were there any funding streams available 

to help with Leisure provision costs? 

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A date 
for completion of the Business Plan looking 
at Leisure Services provision, being drawn 
together by the Community Development and 
Health Manager, be confirmed by the 
Assistant Director Community, and that a 
joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring 

R Perkins
S Wilkinson
S Slade
E Sneath

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams

2014 
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014
Tracking of 
recommendati
ons to PMP 
25 November 
2014
Update on 
Leisure 
options to 
PMP 3 March 
2015 (PDP 
members to 
attend PMP 
meeting)

P
age 58



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task Group

Proposed 
date of report 
to Panel

Panel and Policy Development Panel, for 
consideration of the document, be arranged.

To review the development of 
sporting activities across the 
district (in light of the 
possibility of new leisure 
provision in the future).

June/September 2014??? – Leisure Task 
Group to report to PMP.  If this item falls 
within the remit of the Task Group, remove 
this from the Work Programme.

31 May 
2011

Sir Halley Stewart Field Task 
Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members from 
the Performance Monitoring 
and Policy Development 
Panels. 

Outline Purpose of Review…

To look into whether it was possible for the 
Council to extend the use of the Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing Field to wider public access, 
within the scope of the deeds.

…..based on the following Terms of 
Reference:

 To establish the situation with regard to 
finances in relation to the Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing Field;

 To establish what activities could be 
undertaken at the Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field, and what they would cost;

 To establish how the community could be 
included in a wider usage of the Sir 

11 
December 
2013

12 February 
2014 

G R Aley
P E Coupland
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
A Harrison
R Perkins
E Sneath

To Council  21 
January 2015 
Tracking of 
recommendati
ons to PMP 3 
March 2015.

P
age 59



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task Group

Proposed 
date of report 
to Panel

Halley Stewart Playing Field
 To consider the promotion of the booking 

and accessibility of the Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field in order to ensure that the 
Public Benefit test was met

Scrutiny of the Authority’s 
Emergency Plan

To scrutinise the robustness of the 
Emergency Plan.

To be considered when there is more 
capacity in the Work Programme to 
undertake a new Task Group – agreed at 
PMP 25 November 2014 that Task Group be 
set up upon completion of the Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing Field Task Group.

8 April 2014 

Corporate Communications 
Strategy

On 31 May 2012, the Panel had expressed 
its interest in undertaking a piece of work on 
Communications, in particular 
communication and consultation by the 
County Council with the District and Parish 
Councils and communication by the District 
Council with Members. The Joint 
Communications Team Leader attended a 
meeting on 10 July 2012. The Assistant 
Director-Democratic Services provided a 
briefing on 15 October 2013, advised that 
there was a timeline for the Communications 

31 May 
2012 

P
age 60



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task Group

Proposed 
date of report 
to Panel

service review, a report would be available 
within the next few months, and a strategy 
would follow. 

The effectiveness of 
management companies set 
up to undertake maintenance 
on residential estates 
throughout the district past, 
present and for the future.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

The efficiency and 
effectiveness of the service 
given to the authority by 
Lincolnshire Legal Services.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

The value for money and 
effectiveness of minor 
procurement through the 
authority.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed.

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3.a) Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group
	3.b) Leisure Task Group
	5. Crime and Disorder update
	6. Minutes
	9. Key Decision Plan
	10. Resourcing within the Planning Service
	11. Performance Overview Report - Q3 2014/15
	Appendix A - Performance Overview Report - Q3 2014/15

	12. Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


